
This neighborhood was home to a vibrant Black community 

of mariners and laborers who lived and worked here during 

the late 18th and early 19th centuries.

IN THE EARLY 19TH CENTURY, ABOUT 100 BL ACK 

RESIDENTS LIVED IN NEWBURYPORT  and many resided in the 

neighborhood where you now stand near Auburn and Low Streets. Newburyport and 

other communities across the Northeast used to refer to Black enclaves like this one as 

“Guinea,” suggesting a connection to the west coast of Africa and the geographic center of 

the Atlantic slave trade. Using this term for Black communities carried with it the stigma of 

slavery. Today, we acknowledge the name and its origin. The resilient inhabitants of this 

neighborhood were a significant part of Newburyport’s history and we remember them.

After a hard day’s labor, the residents returned to their modest whitewashed dwellings 

around the Auburn, Pond, and Low Street intersection behind the Old Hill Burying Ground.  

Local census records show four times as many Black residents living in Newburyport than 

in all the surrounding towns combined.  While the heart of the city’s Black community was 

here, a few poor Irish immigrants also lived in this area in the mid- to late 19th century.

Every spring, residents of this neighborhood hosted a jubilant homegrown Black 

Election Day celebration. Revelers feasted on cake and ale, acrobats performed dazzling 

stunts, and fiddlers roused the crowd to dance the night away. Residents debated and 

voted for their own elected officials, such as mariner James Douglas, whom they crowned 

as their community king. The festivities attracted white people like George W. Parsons, who 

remembered celebrating Election Day as a child, “down in ‘Guinea’ … that little hamlet…

with great zest and pleasure.”

Newburyport's Black population dwindled later in the 19th century, and this 

neighborhood was all but erased. Yet the name endured. The railroad bridge built over Low 

Street in 1840 was called Guinea Bridge before its removal in 1981. The southern end of 

Pond Street was once Guinea Lane and the rise on Hillside Avenue was Guinea Hill.  When 

we walk these streets now, we retrace the steps of the people who called Newburyport’s 

Black neighborhood home. Text by Kabria Baumgartner, Geordie Vining, and Cyd Raschke (2022)

A Black Neighborhood
in Historic Newburyport

Guinea Neighborhood

ABOVE: Railroad bridge built in 1841 over 
Low Street and known as 'Guinea Bridge'
July 1981 photograph courtesy of the  
Newburyport Library Archival Center

BACKGROUND: Detail of an  
1894 Newburyport map
Courtesy of the Boston Public Library  
Norman B. Leventhal Map and Education Center

far left: Newburyport Daily 
Herald and Newburyport Daily 
News articles dated 1878 and 
1893 referencing residents of the 
'Guinea' neighborhood.
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